
 
 

 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 
8 September 2020 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A Meeting of the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
Online Meeting on Wednesday, 16th September, 2020 at 6.00 pm. Members of the 
Committee are requested to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or 
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this 
meeting. 

 
When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should 
specify the nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not 
have a dispensation.   
 

 

4 Update from the Chair  

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

5 Responses to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Committee  

 Update on responses received to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Committee. 
 

6 Renewal of Tamworth Dog Control and Alcohol Restricted Zone PSPO 
(Pages 13 - 28) 

 (Report of the Assistant Director, Partnerships) 
 

7 ICT Strategy Briefing (Pages 29 - 48) 

 (Report of the Head of Technology and Informtaion Services) 
 

8 Forward Plan  

 (Discussion item – link to Forward Plan is attached) 
 
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1 
 

9 Working Group Updates  

 To receive updates from any Working Groups 
 

10 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 49 - 
50) 

 (Update and discussion on the Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Work 
Plan) 
 

   _________________________________________ 
 
Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1
mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk


 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 

Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 

be found here for further information. 

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed.  Where 

possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front 

of the public gallery.  This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the 

public being accidentally filmed.    

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the 

location of any cameras when selecting a seat. 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 

here 

 
 
 
To Councillors: S Goodall, A Farrell, M Bailey, R Bilcliff, P Brindley, T Clements, 
P Standen, Dr S Peaple and P Thurgood 

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND 
GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 8th JULY 2020 
 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor S Goodall (Chair), Councillors A Farrell, M Bailey, 

R Bilcliff, P Brindley, T Clements, R Kingstone, Dr S Peaple and 
P Thurgood 

CABINET: Councillor Stephen Doyle 

Councillor Jeremy Oates 

 
The following officers were present: Joanne Sands (Assistant Director 
Partnerships), Jo Hutchison (Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections 
Officer) and David Hunter (Senior Regeneration Officer) 
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting of the Infrastructure Safety & Growth 
Scrutiny Committee held on 27th February 2020 were approved as a correct 
record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor A Farrell and seconded by Councillor Dr S Peaple) 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR  
 
The Chair thanked members for attending this first remote meeting of the 
Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The Chair welcomed the new member of this Committee, Councillor Richard 
Kingstone. 
 
The Chair reminded members that the 31st March 2020 Infrastructure Safety & 
Growth Scrutiny Committee meeting had been cancelled.  That meeting had been 
due to receive an update on local crime figures from the Chief Inspector.  This 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

8 July 2020 

 

 

2 
 

would now be considered in this meeting together with an update from the 
Assistant Director Partnerships on community safety. 
 

4 ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING PROJECT UPDATE  
 
The Chair welcomed the Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth and the Senior 
Regeneration Officer who were in attendance for this item.  The Chair reminded 
the Committee that this was an area where the committee had made 
recommendations to Cabinet around 12 months ago and that tonight the 
committee would receive an update on progress. 
 
The Portfolio Holder introduced the report and invited the Officer attending to 
provide a brief overview.   
 
The Senior Regeneration Officer provided the following updates: 

 since completion of the report there had been contact from one private 
sector organisation expressing an interest in taking a long term lease to 
provide a charging point; 

 that Staffordshire County Council was looking at taking part in a research 
and development project; 

 that electricity capacity issues could mean that residential charging would 
be required as part of the solution. 

 
The Committee considered the report and commented and sought and received 
clarifications in the following areas: 

 further details around the County Council option were requested; 

 further consideration over the expression of interest in a long term lease 
and whether the proposed location at Riverside would be appropriate for 
this length of lease given other potential developments in the town; 

 questions over the benefits to residents of Tamworth as opposed to 
visitors, depending upon the technology pursued; 

 questions over the capability of the electricity network to deliver on 
proposed options; 

 some members considered that provision in Tamworth was behind other 
areas, and other councils, and that a plan to make provision was required, 
notwithstanding some of the technological uncertainties; 

 the role for the council in supporting modal shifts in transport were 
considered whilst acknowledging the realities of the car market which 
currently existed; 

 suggested that contacts were made with other local councils who had 
started their journey to support electric vehicle charging points; such as in 
Newcastle under Lyme and Stafford; 

 what data the council had access to in terms of electric vehicle charging 
demand locally, and what research had been undertaken.  It was 
suggested that contact be made with the Society of Motor Manufacturers 
for relevant data and well as looking to neighbouring councils; 

 it was highlighted that it was important for any decisions to be clear on 
where the demand was for charging provision and it was reported that 

Page 6



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

8 July 2020 

 

 

3 
 

demand for charging facilities was expected to be from both visitors and 
from residents without driveways in terms of on street charging; 

 comments over the proposed Riverside car park location were raised, 
including the need for there to be a strategic view as to where provision 
could best be located. It was considered that any supplier would be better 
able to judge the location specifics; and 

 it was suggested that consideration could be given to utilising s106 support 
in new residential developments. 

 
The Chair moved that Recommendation 1 from the report be amended to remove 
reference to a specific location, and that an additional Recommendation 5 be 
added such that a timescale for provision of electric vehicle infrastructure be 
specific as the end of the 2020/ 2021 municipal year.  The amendments were 
seconded by Councillor T Clements and the recommendations as amended were 
voted on and carried. 
 
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be made to Cabinet  
 

1. That Operating Model 2 is chosen 
 

2. That a further marketing exercise to secure a supplier / operator is carried 
out with Council Officers given delegated authority to offer financial 
incentives in the form of low rental value and / or a financial contribution 
towards the capital cost 

 
3. That a private sector location on the Ventura retail parks is investigated 

 
4. That an Action Plan is developed that focuses on new on-street fast 

charging sites and on-street residential charging sites. 
 

5. Electric vehicle charging infrastructure is installed in the borough by the 
end of the 2020/21 municipal year. 

 
(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor T Clements) 
 
The Chair thanked the Portfolio Holder and the Officer for their attendance, 
following which they left the meeting. 
 

5 COMMUNITY SAFETY PLAN 2020-23 AND TAMWORTH POLICE UPDATE  
 
The Chair welcomed the Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community Safety, 
the Assistant Director, Partnerships and the Chief Inspector Talbot, the Tamworth 
NPT Commander to the meeting for this item. 
 
The Portfolio Holder introduced the item which was for the Committee to consider 
the draft 2020-2023 Community Safety Partnership Plan and to receive a Police 
and Partnership Update and invited the Assistant Director to provide an overview 
of the report. 
 

Page 7



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

8 July 2020 

 

 

4 
 

The Assistant Director provided an overview of the key achievements for the 
2017-2019 Priorities highlighting the steady reduction in reported anti-social 
behaviour (ASB), the introduction of new Public Space Protection Orders 
(PSPOs), the success of the Local Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference 
(MARAC) and the development of Tamworth Borough Council CCTV under a 
shared agreement with West Midlands Combined Authority. The Assistant 
Director provided an overview of the 2020-2023 Priorities which included ASB, 
Domestic Abuse and Stalking & Harassment, Burglaries, County Lines, Public 
Place Violence and Vulnerable Persons and Contextual Safeguarding. 
 
Chief Inspector Talbot provided an overview to the Committee on areas of work 
which particularly contribute to the priorities outlined in the Community Safety 
Plan: 

 The relocation of Tamworth NPT officers to the Belgrave Fire Station – 
work continued on ensuring public access to officers via the intercom 
system 

 Harm Reduction Hub  

 Local MARAC and the work to reduce domestic violence through 
development of partnership solutions 

 ASB figures for Tamworth, where reported ASB had reduced and where 
the general compliance with COVID-19 rules had been good. 

 PSPOs which had been introduced and publicised which had worked work.   

 COVID-19 and management of BLM protects.  It was reported that the 
police had locally facilitated three BLM protests. 

 Future work and engagement in Tamworth where work would continue to 
ensure that the tone and style of policing locally remained correct and 
relevant. 

 
Committee members welcomed the Chief Inspector to Tamworth and made 
comments and sought further clarifications in the following areas: 

 The differences sometimes between the perceived crime levels and 
reported crime levels and how to manage this. The Assistant Director 
reported that whilst during lockdown levels of police reported local 
domestic abuse had not risen, the call for services from partner agencies, 
such as New Era, had increased and where relevant, information received 
from partner agencies could be considered by MARAC to support high risk 
callers such that strategies could be developed to reduce the level of harm 
and risk. 

 The presentation of data and whether there could be any differentiation 
between the town centre figures and the remainder of the Castle ward.  It 
was reported that the software used to compile the data was changing and 
the new system should be able to deliver more current information. 

 
RESOLVED that the Committee recommend to Cabinet that it endorse the 
Tamworth Community Safety Plan 2020-2023 for publication. 
 
(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor P Thurgood) 
 

Page 8



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

8 July 2020 

 

 

5 
 

The Chair thanked The Portfolio Holder, the Chief Inspector and the Assistant 
Director for their attendance, who then left the meeting.  
 
 

6 FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Committee considered the Forward Plan and agreed that the item on the ICT 
Strategy should be brought to this Committee and the Chair agreed to consider 
further the optimum timing for the committee’s consideration. 
 
Councillor Bilcliff thanked the ICT team for its assistance in supporting his 
participation at this meeting. 
 
The Committee agreed that Gungate would continue to be considered by the 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 

7 INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PLAN  
 
The Committee considered its Work Plan and agreed that it was important at this 
time to keep the work plan as flexible as possible. 
 
RESOLVED that the Chair work with relevant Officers to identify items for 
upcoming meeting and to amend the Work Plan accordingly. 
 
(Moved Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor R Bilcliff). 
 
The indicative Work Plan is set out below. 
 

Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan 

Page 9



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

8 July 2020 

 

 

6 
 

 

 
 

  

Work Plan 2020 - 2021 

DATE SUBJECT 

TBC 2020 ICT Strategy (also working group to be set up:  
SG, RB) 

March / April 2020 Review of Taxi Licensing Policy – Points 
System – 12 month review 

When clarity on legislation  Fire Safety Update 

Q2 2020/2021 Waste Management developments  

September 2020 (tbc) Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
interim update 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Dog Control 

September 2020 (tbc) Renewal of PSPO Alcohol Restriction 

January 2021 CCTV implementation review 

25 March 2021 Crime Figures for Tamworth and Community 
safety 

TBC Castle Update 

TBC Review of taxi evidence 

TBC Public Transport and taxis 

TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety) 

TBC Town Centre Growth 

TBC Events Offer (possible working group) 

TBC Review of West Midlands Combined Authority 
– Green / Climate Strategy – targets and data 
for Tamworth 

TBC Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
review of draft Strategy 
 

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings 

16th September 2020 

13th October 2020 

24th November 2020 

20th January 2021 

25th March 2021 

Page 10



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee 

8 July 2020 

 

 

7 
 

 Chair  
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 16TH SEPTEMBER 2020 
 

 
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR - PARTNERSHIPS 

 
 

RENEWAL OF DOG CONTROL AND ALCOHOL RESTRICTED ZONE  PUBLIC 
SPACE PROTECTION ORDERS 

 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
 
PURPOSE 
To consider extension of the Public Space Protection Order (Tamworth Dog 
Control)  and Public Space Protection Order (Alcohol Control in a Public Space 
and support  delegation to the Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community 
Safety for implementation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Scrutiny Committee   
 

1. Approve delegation to the Portfolio Holder, Regulatory and Community 
Safety for the extension of the Public Space Protection Order (Tamworth 
Dog Control)  and Public Space Protection Order (Alcohol Control in a 
Public Space (as attached) 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Processes for the consideration of Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs), 
implemented under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, were 
approved at Cabinet on 18 June 2015.  
 
The following conditions must be met before making the order:  

 Activities carried out in a public place within the local authority’s area have a 
detrimental effect on the quality of life of those living in the locality OR 

 It is likely that activities will be carried out in a public place within the area that 
will have such an effect  

 
The effect, or likely effect of the activities:  

 Is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature OR 

 Is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable and justifies 
the restrictions imposed by the order  

 
All PSPOs can be put in place for a maximum of three year with the option to :- 
 

 To extend for a further specified period of time on expiration if the order 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



continues to meets criteria above  

 To discharge the existing order as no longer needed 
 

 
Existing Dog Control Orders and Designated Public Place Orders were converted to 
a Public Space Protection orders on 20th October 2017. 

 
Following public consultation, implementation of the orders was delegated to the 
Portfolio Holder by Scrutiny for implementation for period three years until 20th 
October 2020 and 31st October 2020 respectively. 
 
Public Space Protection Order (Tamworth Dog Control)  
 
The current order expires on the 20th October 2020 and it is proposed that this order 
is extended for a further 3 year until 20th October 2023. 
 
Without further renewal it will not be possible to issue fixed penalties for dog fouling, 
dogs off lead or where they are prohibited eg children’s play areas.   
 
The renewal also allows for the inclusion of the definition of assistance dogs (added 
as an addendum in 2017 following update to guidance and compliance with the 
Equalities Act 2010). 
 
The PSPO continues to be an excellent tool to promote and ensure responsible dog 
ownership and behaviour and the updated order is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
Public Space Protection Order (Alcohol Control in a Public Space)  
 
The current order expires on 31st October 2020 and it is proposed that this order is 
extended for a further 3 year until 31st October 2023 
 
The current order covers the town centre and Amington. 
 
The order does not prevent alcohol being drank in the areas concerned, but allows 
for designated officers to request cessation and removal of drink where it is 
considered the behaviour is causing alarm, harassment or distress. 
 
At this time no fixed penalties have been issued, however is considered that the 
presence of the order allows for some deterrent and opportunity to promote 
reassurance to the public. 
 
The PSPO is attached as Appendix 2 and the designated areas outlined as Appendix 
3 and 4.. 
 
In accordance with the The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
(Publication of Public Spaces Protection Orders) Regulations 2014, the Council’s 
constitution and process agreed, the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny 
Committee is invited to consider this order and approve delegation to the Portfolio 
Holder for implementation.  The updated PSPOs will continue to be displayed on the 
Council’s website. 
   
 
 
 

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
All options and evidence has been considered as per and the process and proposals 
contained within the executive summary. 
 
The cessation of the order will remove the power of the Council to take action against 
irresponsible dog owners and for the Police to tackle drink related anti-social 
behaviour in the areas identified. 
 
 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
The use of Public Open Space Protection Orders requires enforcement resource and 
can be enforced by Police officers and other Council officers as designated by 
Tamworth Borough Council. 
 
The Order can be enforced by the Police and Community Wardens (when patrolling) 
and will be monitored over the next three years 
 
All other recommendations will be subject to continued review by the Tamworth 
Community Safety Partnership as issues present. 
 
Anti-social behaviour remains a priority for the Partnership and the orders assist with 
this. 
 
There are no financial implications as a result of this report 
 
 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
All legal risks covered by legislation and agreed process 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Extension to the orders provides ongoing sustainable approach to enforcement and 
public space protection 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
A Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) is a measure to stop individuals or groups 
committing ASB in public places. The local authority will identify the area that is to be 
covered by the order – known as the ‘restricted area’.  
 
The PSPO can:  

 Prohibit specified things being done in the area  

 Require specified things to be done in the area  
 
The prohibitions or requirements can be framed so that they:  

 Apply to all persons, or only persons in specified categories, or to all persons 
except those in specified categories  

 Apply at all times, or only at specified times, or at all times except those 
specified  

 Apply in all circumstances, or only in specified circumstances, or in all 
circumstances except those specified  

 
The process was outlined and agreed at Cabinet on 18 June 2015.  
 
If after consideration, areas are to be subject to a PSPO, Cabinet agreed to a 
statutory 28 day consultation (as outlined under the PSPO Guidelines 2014), the 
results of which will be discussed at Scrutiny for delegated approval to the Portfolio 
Holder for implementation 
 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
Jo Sands, Assistant Director - Partnerships 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1– PSPO (Tamworth Dog Control) 
Appendix 2 –PSPO (Alcohol Control in a public Space) 
Appendix 3 – Designated Alcohol Control area (Town Centre) 
Appendix 4 – Designated Alcohol Control area (Amington) 
 
 

Page 16



TAMWORTH COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPLY A PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 

Section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 

Public Space Protection Order (Tamworth Dog Control) 

In relation to evidence that has been gathered and reviewed relating to Tamworth 

Dog Control Orders (2012) the Tamworth Community Safety Partnership (lead 

agency Tamworth Borough Council), intends to apply a Public Spaces Protection 

Order. 

The Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) covers four areas of dog control: 

A. The Fouling of Land by Dogs 
B. Dogs on leads 
C. Dogs on leads by direction 
D. Dogs exclusion 
 
A. The Fouling of Land by Dogs 

This relates to the offence of fouling of land by dogs. The public health implications 

of dog foul are well documented. 

If a dog defecates at any time on land to which this order applies, and the person 

who is in charge of the dog at that time fails to remove the faeces from the land 

forthwith, that person shall be guilty of an offence unless; 

a. he has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 

b. the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land 

has consented (generally or specifically) to his failing to do so; 

This Order applies to land described in the Schedule A below, being land in the area 

of Tamworth Borough Council. 

For the purpose of this article: 

a. placing the faeces in a receptacle on the land which is provided for this 
purpose, or for the disposal of waste, shall be a sufficient removal from the 
land; 

b. being unaware of the defecation (whether by reason of not being in the 
vicinity or otherwise), or not having a device for or other suitable means of 
removing the faeces, shall not be a reasonable excuse for failing to 
remove the faeces; 

 

Schedule A: Dog fouling of land 

Subject to the exception in paragraph 2 below, this Order applies to all and which is 

within the area of Tamworth Borough Council and which is – 

Page 17



 

                                                                                                                                      

1. Open to the air (which includes land that is covered but open to the air on at least 

one side); and to which the public are entitled or permitted to have access with or 

without payment. 

 

2. Excepted from the description in paragraph 1 above is: 

i. land that is placed at the disposal of the Forestry Commissioners under 

section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 1967; or  

ii. agricultural land. 

 

B. Dogs on Leads 

Dogs whilst not on a lead and poorly supervised, or startled, have a greater potential 

to cause road traffic accidents, or to cause injury to pedestrians and other dogs. The 

restrictions in this Order are designed to facilitate a sharing of our public spaces, 

whilst recognising that dogs do need to be exercised off lead. 

A person in charge of a dog shall be guilty of an offence, if at any time, they fail to 

keep their dog on a lead, unless: 

a. he has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so, or 
b. the owner, occupier, or other person, or other authority having control of 

the land has given consent (generally or specifically); 
 
This part of the Order applies to land described in the Schedule B below being land 

in the area of the Council. 

Schedule B: Dogs on leads 

1. Subject to the exception in paragraph 2 below, this Order applies to the following 

designated land:- 

Amington Cemetery, Wilnecote Cemetery (Old and New), Glascote Cemetery, 

Wigginton Cemetery, Anker Valley Sports Pitches, Pedestrian area of the Town 

Centre, Upper and Lower  Lawn (Castle Grounds), St Edithas Church Graveyard 

and all current and future public footpaths and grass verges to highways in 

Tamworth (as defined by the Road Traffic Act 1988) 

2. Excepted from the description in paragraph 1 above is: 

i. land that is placed at the disposal of the Forestry Commissioners under 

section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 1967; or  

ii. agricultural land. 

 

Page 18



 

                                                                                                                                      

C. Dogs on leads by direction 

In parts of the Borough where dogs are permitted off leads, a minority of 

irresponsible dog owners allow their dogs to cause damage to property, and cause 

problems for pedestrians and other dog owners.  

This part of the Order is designed to enable authorised Council Officers/Police to 

direct that the owner put their dog on a lead. 

A person in charge of a dog will be guilty of an offence if at any time, on land to 

which this Part applies, they fail to comply with a direction given them by an 

authorised officer of the Council to put and keep the dog on a lead, unless; 

a. he has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 

b. the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land, 

has given consent (generally or specifically); 

For the purposes of this request an authorised officer of the Council/Police may only 

direct a person to put and keep a dog on a lead if such restraint is reasonably 

necessary to prevent either a nuisance, or behaviour by the dog likely to cause 

annoyance or disturbance to any other person, or the worrying of other animals on 

designated land to which this order applies. 

This Part of the Order applies to land described in Schedule C below being land in 

the area of the Council. 

Schedule C: Dogs on leads by direction 

Subject to the exception in paragraph 2 below, this Order applies to all and which is 

within the area of Tamworth Borough Council and which is – 

1. Open to the air (which includes land that is covered but open to the air on at least 

one side); and to which the public are entitled or permitted to have access with or 

without payment. 

2. Excepted from the description in paragraph 1 above is: 

i. land that is placed at the disposal of the Forestry Commissioners under 
section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 1967; or  
 
ii. agricultural land. 
 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

                                                                                                                                      

D. Dogs exclusion 

There are specific parts of the Borough from which dogs should be excluded for their 
safety and that of pedestrians, and for public health and aesthetic reasons. This part 
of the Order states the relatively few places from where dogs will be excluded. 
 
A person in charge of a dog will be guilty of an offence if at any time he takes the 
dog onto, or permits the dog to enter or remain on, any land specified in the Order, 
unless; 

a. he has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 
b. the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land, 

has given consent (generally or specifically); 
 
This Part of the Order applies to the land described in Schedule D below being land 

in the area of the Council. 

Schedule D: Dogs exclusion 

1. Subject to the exception in paragraph 2 below, this Order applies to designated 

play areas (fenced or unfenced) within the Borough of Tamworth as specifically 

but not excluding other designated areas and future areas as follows –  

Amington Recreation Play Area, Beauchamp Road Play Area, Brendon 
/Ealingham Play Area, Castle Pleasure Grounds Activity Centre (former outdoor 
swimming baths), Castle Pleasure Grounds Play Area, Castle Grounds Skate 
Park, Castle Grounds Tennis Courts, Crowden Road Play Area, Dosthill Park 
Play Area, Hamble Play Area, Hawksworth Play Area, Irwell Play Area, 
Lakenheath Play Area, Lakeside Park Play Area,  Linthouse Walk Play Area, 
Lothersdale Play Area, Park Farm Road Play Area, Parkfield Crescent Play Area, 
Rainscar Play Area, Reedmace Play Area, St Georges Way/Rosemary road Play 
Area, Wigginton Park Play Area  
 

 
2. Excepted from the description in paragraph 1 above is: 

i. land that is placed at the disposal of the Forestry Commissioners under 
section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 1967; or  
 
ii. agricultural land. 
 

General Point For the purpose of parts A, B, C, and D of this Public Space 

Protection Order: 

Nothing in this Public Space Protection Order shall apply to a disabled person (within 

the meaning of the Equality Act 2010) whose disability restricts his ability to comply 

with the Order and the dog is their guide dog or assistance dog. 

Page 20



 

                                                                                                                                      

For the purpose of this article, a person who habitually has a dog in his possession 

shall be taken to be in charge of the dog at any time unless at that time some other 

person is in charge of the dog. 

Offences under this Public Space Protection Order 

A person who is guilty of an offence shall on summary conviction be liable to a fine 

not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale 

A Fixed Penalty Notice of £100.00 will be issued to offenders to be paid within 28 

days (reduced to £85.00 if paid within 14 days) which would discharge any liability to 

conviction for an offence under Section 67(1) of the Act. 

This order may be cited as 'The Public Space Protection Order (Tamworth Dog 

Control)’ and shall come into force on 20 October 2020 and remain in force for a 

period of three years. (Previous Order 20 October 2017 – 19 October 2020) 

If any interested person desires to question the validity of this Order on the grounds 

that the Council had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not 

be complied with in relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court 

within six weeks from the date on which this order is made. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



TAMWORTH COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

                                                                                                                                      

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPLY A PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 

Section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 

Public Space Protection Order (Alcohol Control in a Public Place) 

1. Tamworth Community Safety Partnership (lead agency Tamworth Borough 

Council) is satisfied that alcohol related anti-social behaviour is being carried out 

within the area to which this order applies, it is likely that these activities will 

continue to be carried out and that this is having or it is likely to have a 

detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality by causing 

harassment, alarm and distress. 

This order relates to the land inside the area Tamworth town centre and 

Amington marked on the attached map (Schedule 1 & 2) which is outlined in red 

(‘the Restricted Area’) .  

This includes all spaces within this boundary that are accessible to the public. 

2. Under the terms and restrictions of the Public Space Protection Order, the 

following applies:- 

2.1. ALL persons are prohibited from consuming alcohol and must dispose of 
any vessel believed to contain alcohol, when asked to do so by an authorised 
person, when it is believed that they are either committing or likely to commit 
Anti-Social Behaviour in a public place. 

 
2.2. ALL persons who are or appear to be under the age of 18 are prohibited 

from consuming alcohol at all times  and must dispose of any vessel believed 
to contain alcohol, when asked to do so by an authorised person at all times 

 
2.3. An authorised person can also require any person: 

a) To not consume alcohol or anything the authorised person reasonably 

believes to be alcohol, in sealed or unsealed vessels. 

b) To surrender anything in the person’s possession which is, or the 

authorised person reasonably believes to be, alcohol or likely to be used 

as a container for alcohol. 

Any surrendered items are to be retained by the authorised person and safely 
disposed of as appropriate. 
 

3. Exemptions 

This provision does not apply to alcohol being consumed within premises 

(including designated outdoor areas) that have obtained a license under the 

Licensing Act 2003 or section 115E of the Highways Act 1980. 

 

Page 23



4. Offences under this Public Space Protection Order 

A person who is guilty of an offence shall on summary conviction be liable to a 

fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale 

A Fixed Penalty Notice of £100.00* will be issued to offenders to be paid within 

28 days (reduced to £85.00 if paid within 14 days) which would discharge any 

liability to conviction for an offence under Section 67(1) of the Act. 

*At the discretion of the officer, persons found to be under the age of 16 years 

may be subject to alternative sanctions as outlined in the Tamworth Borough 

Council ASB Policy. 

This order may be cited as 'The Public Space Protection Order (Alcohol Control 
in a Public Place)’ and shall come into force on 1 November 2020 and remain in 
force for a period of three years. 
(Previous order 1 November 2017 – 31 October 2020). 
 

5. If any interested person desires to question the validity of this Order on the 

grounds that the Council had no power to make it or that any requirement of the 

Act has not be complied with in relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the 

High Court within six weeks from the date on which this order is made. 

Page 24



Town Centre Alcohol Free Zone
Scale:  1:750015:09:17Date:

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017
Ordnance Survey 100018267

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Scale:  1:500015:09:17Date:

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017
Ordnance Survey 100018267

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



IS&G SCRUTINY 
 

WEDNESDAY, 16TH SEPTEMBER 2020 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF TECHNOLOGY AND INFORMATION 
SERVICES 

 
ICT STRATEGY BRIEFING 

 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this document is to provide a briefing on progress made to date on 
the ICT Strategy for period 2020 to 2025. This will provide information on 
background, process followed and next steps and accompany the working strategy 
document presented to the committee.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Tamworth has a small but dedicated ICT team, service delivery standards are high 
and resources have to be used effectively and efficiently. Over the next 5 years there 
will be increasing financial pressures on the service and wider organisation as well as 
increasing service level and access channel expectations from our residents. 
External pressures in the form of new legislation, central government policy, cyber 
threats and information security will also impact on ICT service delivery.  
 
The recent pandemic has had a significant impact on the ICT service and the wider 
authority and has forced us all to think and work differently. The ICT service and the 
Council’s staff have responded positively, relying even more on ICT tools to carry out 
their role whilst working remotely. The pandemic has further demonstrated the 
significant reliance on effective and robust ICT Infrastructure and tools but also how 
ICT can facilitate rapid transformation and change. 
 
These challenges will also present opportunities to use ICT to do more with less, 
using technology as a key enabler at the heart of everything the Authority does and 
to improve the daily lives of our citizens and their experience when accessing our 
services.  
 
The Authority has seen a continued programme of investment and improvement in 
ICT. It is essential that momentum is maintained, building on significant cadence 
gained in recent months, evolving our technology portfolio to meet customer 
expectations and demand, support the organisation’s continued digital transformation 
journey and underpin delivery of our Corporate Plan and Strategic Priorities.  
 
THE NATURE AND SHAPE OF THE STRATEGY 
 
The strategy will aim to be a framework to inform and support service plans, other 
technical and non-technical strategies, our continued transformation journey and a 
programme of technology improvement. 
 
It has been created for a non-technical audience, designed to be a high level 
document introducing our ICT Vision, setting out guiding principles by which ICT will 
deliver technology services to the Council and introducing 5 key ICT strategic 
themes. These will form key action areas to support the Council’s vision and priorities 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



as well as evolving our technology portfolio whilst maintaining information security 
and governance. 
 
The strategy has been developed with a focus throughout on the following three core 
agendas to keep at the forefront, our corporate plan and an underpinning technology 
plan:   
 

1. Customer agenda 
2. Organisational agenda 
3. Technical agenda   

 
The ICT strategic themes introduced in this strategy have been chosen based on 
common themes throughout local government ICT strategies but as seen through the 
lens of our specific challenges and corporate priorities. The themes focus on the 
following key areas: 
 

 Our digital transformation aspirations and journey, supporting the 
Government’s Digital by Default approach; 

 Using our intelligence, information and insight to better inform the services we 
provide and the decisions we make; 

 Maintaining the security and integrity of our ICT systems and data in 
response to the ever changing cyber security threat landscape and increased 
regime of compliance; 

 Using technology and culture change to adopt smarter, more agile ways of 
working; 

 Evolving our technology portfolio for the future; 
     
To support these themes, a journey to success will be added to demonstrate a 
proposed timeline for associated key activities. Recent events have shown we can 
boldly advance our digital agenda, its essential our ICT strategy supports maintaining 
the momentum of transformation, building on our successes and progress of the last 
6 months.  
 
RECENT PROGRESS 
 
In response to the Coronavirus pandemic, we’ve made significant progress in several 
of the workstreams which support the strategy’s key themes. There are also several 
key achievements delivered by the ICT service in difficult circumstances which have 
accelerated the pace of our service transformation and given us a platform on which 
to build with the strategy. 
 
Some key highlights include -   
 

 Successfully mobilised the majority of our office based workforce to work 
effectively and securely with access to all key systems from home in 
challenging circumstances and urgency maintaining the Council’s service 
provision.  

 

 Increased uptake of our collaboration tools, implemented wider use of Teams 
including successful implementation of online committee meetings. We’ve 
expedited our Office 365 deployment, enabling staff to keep connected to 
their teams whilst at home and bringing forward our journey towards leverage 
of Cloud services increasing agility and collaboration of our workforce. 

 

Page 30



 Replaced and upgraded a large percentage of our laptop estate and 
upgraded our key Microsoft platforms enabling staff to work using the latest 
ICT tools.  
 

 Continued development of our customer portal, signing off a number of 
processes and testing new ones in preparation for deployment into the Portal 
for customer access, supporting the transformation to a digital by default 
Council. Commencement of the Orchard Housing Portal implementation to 
further improve our digital services offer to our customers and streamline 
back office processes in Housing.  
 

 Continued our programme of system upgrades to ensure compliance and 
security of our network. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Delivery of the Strategy and associated activities will require funding, both capital 
investment and ongoing revenue commitments. This will be picked up as part of 
medium term financial strategy planning and ICT service budget planning processes.   
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
Continued development of this strategy needs be done in conjunction with all 
stakeholders, from members and the council’s leadership team, to heads of service 
and wider service users. To enable a collaborative approach to development of this 
strategy, further consultation with stakeholders will be carried out with key feedback 
and content considered and included where appropriate. Associated technical 
strategies will be developed going forward, guided by this strategy informing our ICT 
Service Plan programme of work.   
 
The Strategy aims to underpin continued transformation, building on the progress 
and successes achieved during COVID19 and supporting the recovery and new 
operating model ensuring that the council is resilient and agile for the future and can 
continue to deliver essential public services within the ‘new normal’. 
 
PRINCIPAL STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT MILESTONES 
 
Below is an indicative timeline for delivery and sign off of the ICT Strategy document. 
This is subject to change to allow for consideration and inclusion of the organisation’s 
COVID19 Reset and Recovery plans. 
 
18th December 2019 - Initial presentation to CMT 
24th January 2020 – Strategy overview to Portfolio Holder for Culture and Operational 
Services 
5th February 2020 – Further presentation to Assistant Directors for feedback and 
dissemination to heads of service  
Nov 2020 - Strategy approval – CMT 
Nov 2020 – Strategy printed version produced with graphics/illustrations  
Dec 2020 – Strategy review/approval – Cabinet 
Dec 2020 – Strategy publication 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Gareth Youlden, Head of Technology and Information Services 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

ICT Strategy 2020 – 2025 

DRAFT 

Purpose 

The purpose of this document is to set out the Council’s Information and Communications 

Technology (ICT) Strategy for 2020 to 2025 and how this will support the Council’s vision to put 

Tamworth, its people and the local economy at the heart of everything we do. It will underpin 

delivery of our strategic priorities focused on supporting ‘our people’ and ‘our place’ whilst ensuring 

our technology supports organisational priorities and associated deliverables in line with our 

Corporate Plan. 

Introduction 

There continues to be rapid, significant changes across the public sector. The shape and size of the 

Council will continue to change but the need to provide high levels of service to our customers will 

remain and continue to be challenged by reduced budgets. We live in a digital age where demand 

for public services and expectations of service levels continue to increase. Customers expect access 

channels, ease of use and service levels they experience online from large private sector 

organisations and they expect to be able to access their services at times and from places that suit 

them.  

These new challenges will present new opportunities for technology as an enabler to achieve 

efficiencies, increase the organisation’s effectiveness and underpin the Council’s vision to put 

Tamworth, its people and the local Community at the heart of everything we do. The council needs 

to ensure it is fit for the future by leveraging the use of technology, information and insight to 

deliver affordable, efficient, sustainable, digitally enabled services that better meet customer’s 

needs and expectations.  

There has been a continued programme of investment into ICT in recent years giving us a strong 

foundation for the future and enabling us to work towards delivering services in new, diverse and 

innovative ways. The ICT Service is uniquely positioned to support our digital transformation 

journey. Our workforce are now more reliant than ever on technology, one of the key principles of 

this Strategy is to ensure the Council’s ICT infrastructure remains secure, available and resilient to 

the risk of cyber-attacks. 

  

Page 33



This strategy has been created with a non-technical audience in mind, enabling our ICT vision, 

principles, strategic themes and journey to success to be clearly demonstrated. ICT is continually 

evolving and consequently it is difficult to predict opportunities that advancements in technology 

will present to the Council over the life of this Strategy. However, broad themes have been identified 

as the focus for this strategy with three objectives below remaining the focus throughout.   

 

1. Customer agenda - To digitally enable customer access to council services.  
2. Organisation agenda - To enable a digitally skilled workforce to make effective use and 

obtain the maximum benefit from ICT. 
3. Technical agenda - To provide a robust, reliable, available, effective and resilient ICT 

infrastructure which is future fit and value for money. The technical agenda must be 
accompanied by business process transformation with digital service delivery remaining at 
the forefront. 

 

Internally, our ICT Continuous Improvement Programme will drive efficiencies through improved 

ways of working, increasing automation, delivering self-service and ensuring full exploitation of 

existing and new technology. 

 

Finally, this strategy highlights the importance of a digital infrastructure in Tamworth – broadband, 

electronic services, access and skills. A robust digital infrastructure is a key factor in promoting 

growth and economic prosperity and working collaboratively and flexibly to meet the needs of our 

communities, identified as key elements of the People and Place priorities in our Corporate Plan.  

 

This document is not intended to describe every strategic theme or specific programme of work in 

detail, it is intended to both inform and influence ICT elements of service plans to deliver the 

Council’s Vision and Strategic Priorities. It aims to underpin continued transformation, building on 

recent progress and successes to help the Council remain resilient and agile for the future, delivering 

essential public services within a ‘new normal’. It should be considered an organic document and as 

such will be reviewed on a regular basis and reissued as required. 

  

Page 34



Context 

National and local influences as well as legislation inform our Strategy to ensure we deliver ICT 

services that support the Councils strategic priorities. Some of our key influencers are -  

 National Influencers 

 Financial Climate and reduced government funding 

 Environmental awareness 

 Evolving technology landscape 

 Cyber threat 

 Central government strategies and initiatives 

 Partnerships 

 

<Expand specifics on - >  

 Other service specific legislation to be considered – AD input 

 Central Government Strategies and Initiatives 

 Regional priorities – partnership with WMCA? 

 

The Government’s Digital Strategy describes Digital by Default as ‘Digital services which are so 

straight-forward and convenient that all those who can use digital services will choose to do so, 

while those who can’t are not excluded’. This Strategy will aim to support this approach, 

providing a framework for sustainable customer-centric service delivery and engagement using 

digital technologies. 

Cyber Security is a key consideration for this Strategy. The threat is ever growing and evidence 

suggests that nearly 50% of businesses experienced a cyber-attack or breach in 2019 and 1 in 5 

of them experienced a material outcome, losing money or data. Organisations holding personal 

data are statistically most likely to be attacked, with the most common attacks being fraudulent 

emails, viruses and malware. The UK Government is urging organisations to adopt appropriate 

measures to protect the confidentiality and integrity of systems and information, protecting 

against the threat of cyber-crime. Our cyber security agenda will remain a high priority. 

 

 Local influencers 

 The Council’s Corporate Vision, Purpose and Strategic Priorities. 

 Local service strategies 

 Consultation with the Councils leadership team, Heads of Service, ICT staff and Members 

 Delivering Quality Services Transformation Programme 

 

A Connected Tamworth - Whilst there is no statutory requirement to deliver superfast 

broadband, full fibre coverage and 5G infrastructure as part of new planning developments, we 

will actively encourage early involvement with telecoms providers and work with partners to 

Page 35



support expansion of a full fibre connected Tamworth and acceleration of 5G connectivity across 

the Borough.   

Digital Maturity and Inclusion - The Council is on a journey of digital transformation. Exploiting 

the benefits of a digital approach to service delivery can only be realised by associated culture 

change and process redesign, addressing all aspects of the service model and not just the 

technology we use. Collaborating with our communities and partners and sharing information to 

foster closer relationships whilst maintaining appropriate levels of security continues to present 

a challenge to the organisation. 

We also recognise the importance of digital inclusion and to maintain traditional access channels 

for those not able to join us and embrace our digital transformation journey, this will be 

reflected and addressed in our Customer Services Strategy. 

Reset and Recover - In response to the pandemic, the organisation experienced a period of rapid 

change. This had a significant impact on the ICT service and the wider Authority and forced us all 

to think and work differently. ICT and our Strategy are key to underpin the Council’s recovery 

plans and help shape a Tamworth Borough Council for the future. 

Key Strategic Projects - The council has a number of key projects associated with delivering the 

Corporate Plan and our Strategic Priorities - further AD Input? 

 High Street Regeneration/Town Centre Plan 

 

 

 Legislative and Governance Influencers 

 Public Service Network (PSN) 

 General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 

 Payment Card Industry Standard (PCI) 

 ICT Industry best practice (ITIL) 

 

To further inform and validate our approach, a number of additional sources have been considered 

in the development of this Strategy including:  

 Government Digital Strategy 

 National Cyber Security Strategy 2016 to 2021  

 Government Digital Service (GDS) online resources  

 SOCITIM  paper ‘Simplify - Standardise – Share’  

 LGA – Future of Local Government 

 Government Transformation Strategy 

o Technology Code of Practice 

 Latest guidance on Brexit implications and associated GDPR risks 

  

Page 36



Where we are now 

The Council strives to continually develop its technology to improve delivery of services, operating 

within financial constraints and increased customer demand.  The following are some of the 

activities that the ICT Service has delivered or supported which demonstrates our commitment to 

continuous improvement; 

 Introduction of agile working across the Council, consolidating office space and allowing staff to 

work flexibly and in response to demand, maintaining essential service provision whilst working 

remotely. 

 Introduced technology driven collaboration tools, implemented wider use of Teams including 

successful implementation of online committee meetings. Expedited our Office 365 deployment, 

enabling staff to keep connected to their teams whilst working remotely and bringing forward 

our journey towards leverage of Cloud services increasing agility and collaboration of our 

workforce. 

 Contact centre improvements allowing our customers calls to be delivered to the right team first 

time more of the time  

 Development of a new CRM and Customer Portal along with associated process redesign, 

improving efficiency of front and back office processes and working towards digital 

transformation and channel shift 

 A 3 year Agreement with Microsoft for Operating Systems and Desktop Productivity software, 

introducing cloud based services and providing a path to wider cloud use 

 Introduction of a dedicated ICT Training resource to leverage use of existing technology and 

improve introduction of new and updated ICT systems 

 ICT Infrastructure improvements including network, server, storage, backup and end user device 

refreshes to ensure availability, performance and stability of ICT systems.    

 Business continuity arrangement with Walsall MBC to improve ICT system resilience.    

 Maintain high system availability and network security compliance whilst managing a continually 

changing ICT environment and growing cyber threat. 

 

<Further input from service level to be included – AD consultation> 

 

ICT Vision, Principles and Strategic Themes 

This strategy starts with a vision for the ICT service. This vision is underpinned by guiding principles 
which will provide a framework within which the ICT service is delivered. It then describes 5 strategic 
ICT themes, supporting the Council’s Vision and Priorities and informing a strategic programme for 
ICT.  
  

Page 37



ICT Vision 

Our vision aims to serve as a high level statement defining what Technology and Information 
Services provides for its stakeholders and to support the Council delivering its Corporate Plan. 
 
Our vision is to -  
 
Exploit technology to deliver change and innovation based on a foundation of secure and flexible ICT 
infrastructure underpinning the Council’s vision to put Tamworth, its people and the local economy at 
the heart of everything we do. 
 
In delivery of this vision, Technology and Information Services seeks to: 

1. Lead innovation, championing new ideas, processes and solutions  

2. Maximise the benefits of technology to create service improvements and efficiency savings 

supporting transformation across the Council 

3. Support Elected Members, officers and staff in effective use of technology 

4. Ensure ICT architecture is fit for the future to deliver an efficient, effective and customer-centric 

ICT service which supports a fully agile and flexible workforce 

5. Standardise strategies, policies, processes and technologies to ensure best practice and facilitate 

sharing of information and partnership working 

6. Align ICT spend with service priorities and ensure value for money and contributing to financial 

stability 

7. Ensure robust ICT Service Management, Business continuity, Information Governance and 

Information Security becoming a ‘trusted’ ICT partner, both internally and externally.  

 

The following diagram demonstrates how the ICT Strategy will underpin the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and Strategic Priorities.  

 

 

         Corporate Plan 

                Informs 

      

 

           Council’s Strategic Priorities - People and Place 

                 Informs 

 

 

            ICT Strategy 

                Informs 

 

   ICT Business Plan             Service Business Plans 

                 Informs 

      

              Delivering Quality Services 

            Transformation Programme 

  

Page 38



ICT Service Principles 

These guiding principles represent a service-focussed approach for ICT, designed to set expectations 

and provide clear direction for service users, provide a basis for decision making and set out what we 

do to support the organisation in delivering our vision and priorities in our Corporate Plan. These ICT 

principles will be used to inform ICT Service Management, Service Plan Activities and our Technical 

Strategy for: 

 Corporate and Line of Business Applications 

 Network Infrastructure and Communications 

 End User Devices 

 Security, Identity and Access Management 

Our guiding service principles 

 We will adopt a sound but pragmatic governance framework to embed good practice, 

standards and process into the service; 

 Our ICT infrastructure will enable a flexible and agile workforce allowing collaboration 

between our staff and partners; 

 We will adopt in principle, a Cloud First approach - Commercial-off-the-shelf (COTS), cloud-

based or externally hosted, best of breed, secure and compliant line of business applications 

and systems will be considered in preference to in-house developed/on premise hosted 

solutions unless a sound business/financial case exists to develop or host internally; 

 Business requirements will drive the technical solutions we adopt, not the reverse; 

 We will actively engage in the business planning process to ensure alignment with this 

strategy, allow early ICT and Information Governance engagement enabling a full 

understanding of associated ICT work streams and to explore the ‘art of the possible’;  

 Priority will be given to investment in technology and services providing the maximum 

benefit and tangible business outcomes for users in line with the council’s priorities and 

service strategies whilst working within existing financial constraints; 

 In line with the approved process identified in the System Review, ICT will seek to; 

o Rationalise and standardise the technology portfolio in use across the organisation 

to minimise cost, complexity and technical diversity. Significant customisation of 

applications or systems will be done only where necessary and be subject to a 

justifiable business case;  

o Re-negotiate contracts with key system and application suppliers on expiry, ensuring 

continuity of support and maintenance and value for money.    

 Technology decisions will be fully informed and based on an understanding of risks, benefits 

and total cost of ownership to the organisation both in the short, medium and long term. 

We will aim to reduce the impact on service delivery whenever serious failures occur; 

 Technology solutions will be designed and implemented with a customer-centric view. 

Solutions will be intuitive, usable, fully exploited, interoperable and accessible. We will 

leverage all available benefits from our suppliers to ensure value for money and quality of 

service for the organisation; 

 We will invest in and develop our staff to deliver an efficient and effective ICT Service that 

will continue to meet the technology needs of the organisation;  

Page 39



 We will ensure ICT security and compliance standards are maintained. Our approach will aim 

for a pragmatic balance between usability & security. Our ICT systems, services and 

processes will comply with legislation, standards and policies in order to help protect our 

information from unauthorised access, use and disclosure; 

 ICT will support and champion the use of data to drive decision making through better use of 

knowledge, information and insight; 

 Corporate application system administration will be managed within ICT to ensure robust 

security, governance, technical standards and continuity of service; 

 All ICT related budgets and technology spend will be centralised, managed and controlled by 

ICT to gain efficiencies from a holistic view of ICT spend, understand total cost of ownership, 

strengthen contracts and better inform delivery of a value for money ICT service eliminating 

‘Shadow ICT’; 

 Our systems will have minimal environmental impact with low energy usage. 

 Principle #10 

 (SOURCING) 

  

Page 40



ICT Strategic Themes  

Our ICT Strategy has 5 key themes which will support delivery of our Vision and Corporate Plan.  

 Digital by Design - Transforming to a Digital by Default Organisation  

All services will be digital by design, enabling our customers to access the services and 
information they need, where and when they need them. 

Rational - AD/HOS Input 

 Putting our customers at the centre of digital change and encouraging a choice move to digital 

access channels. Maintaining non-digital channels for those that need them. 

 Digital transactions are more cost effective to process allowing better use of our limited financial 

resources 

 Strategic transformation to digital services must include process redesign and cultural change. 

Digital transformation cannot take place if the Council’s technology, processes and culture are 

not aligned. Focus on achieving better outcomes for our customers. 

 Our workforce needs to be positioned with the right digital skills to ensure we continue to 

evolve and innovate. Emphasis on automation and self-service to free up staff resources.  

 The wider digital approach can deliver significant benefits to the Council, it’s customers and 

partners, with the potential to: 

 Deliver better outcomes 

 Reduce costs and deliver improved value for money services 

 Stimulate and enable innovation and new ways of working 

 Re-shape and Improve the relationship between the Council, our Customers and our 

Partners 

 

Key Activities – AD/HOS Input on service specific activities. 

 Portal and CRM development with wider use of e-forms and access to back office systems 
promoting a self-service approach  

 Widen our use of diverse access channels including social media to improve 

communications, partnership working and drive efficiencies.  

 Explore wider use government digital services 

 

Outcomes and Benefits - AD/HOS Input on service specific outcomes 

 24/7 customer service 

 Easy and consistent access 

 Reduced back office processing leading to less failure and poor data validation 

Page 41



 Working Smarter  

Adopt technology, organisational culture and behaviours to support a fully agile, flexible and a 
collaborative workforce. 

Rational - AD/HOS Input 

 Our existing technology, business and working practices place certain limits on our effectiveness. 
Many of our main systems are not available on mobile technology, a large proportion of our 
mobile technology is not fit for purpose, our data is not easy to share, and we do not fully exploit 
the benefits of some of our existing mobility technology.  

 Technology needs to be easy to use and accessible when and wherever our staff require 

 Our workface, front line and back office, need to be equipped with the right technology, skills 
and behaviours to exploit agile and flexible ways of working, carrying out their roles from the 
most effective location and at the most effective time. 

 Significant inefficiencies result from inadequate or underutilised access to systems, data and 
communications tools for staff to work effectively whilst away from the office.  

 Staff may introduce working practices that present risks to information security as they find 

workarounds to overcome system failings. 

 Leverage ICT partners and 3rd parties to deliver elements of infrastructure support and 

maintenance and to support infrastructure improvement projects where this is best fit and 

value. This model will enable smarter, more flexible use of limited resources within the service, 

focussing on delivery of key projects to support the Corporate Plan. 

 Changing organisational culture and behaviours towards smarter, collaborative and agile 

working practices needs to be adopted and driven by the Councils leadership team and Council 

members.    

 

Key Activities – AD/HOS Input on service specific activities. 

 Mobile phone contract review/replacement 

 Drive up mobility and agility of our workforce 

 Work towards single identities and authentication 

 Upskilling our workforce to exploit our existing and new technologies 

 Equip Council buildings with tools to enable collaboration and conferencing with remote 
colleagues and partners i.e. secure Wi-Fi, hot-desking, technology equipped meeting rooms  

 Develop and encourage use of our productivity and collaboration tools  

 Investigate use of Government Initiatives such as the Digital Services - Pay, Notify and Verify  

 Deployment of self-service tools for ICT Service Desk access to better meet the needs of 
agile and flexible working 

 Equip members with flexible ICT and the skills to maximise use  

 Wider use of EDRM, aspiring to paperless processes by default. 

 Explore opportunities for sharing technology services with our partners 
 

Outcomes and Benefits - AD/HOS Input on service specific outcomes 

 Work collaboratively with anyone, anywhere 

 More effective and efficient use of our office space  

Page 42



 Fully agile workforce 

 Share and inform securely 

 Our workforce access their data and information using the right technology aligned to their 
working patterns and location 
 

  

Page 43



 Better use of Business Intelligence, Knowledge and Insight  

Leverage the information and intelligence we hold to better inform our decision making and 
deliver improved outcomes for our customers   

Rational – AD/HOS Input - Central to the theme of Digital by Default is the emphasis on managing 
the data we collect, gaining value from turning it into information, adding intelligence and insight to 
better inform change and support our corporate priorities to ensure our decisions are driven by 
evidence and knowledge. 

 Using data to empower and enable our customer service team to direct resources more 
effectively 

 Open data principles along with the transparency framework supporting and reducing Freedom 

of Information (FOI) requests 

 Increase data sharing internally, across our services and with our partners and in support of 
central government initiatives, embracing the principles of openness and transparency whilst 
maintaining security and integrity of our information.   

 Single version of the truth - there is a single version of people and property data, shared across 
Council applications, reducing unnecessary duplication, rework, limiting errors and improving 
process efficiency. 

 Standardising and cleansing our datasets, duplication and inefficiency will be removed, ensuring 

that data can be presented accurately. 

  
 

Key Activities – AD/HOS Input on service specific activities. 

 Establish and develop a knowledge and insight hub    

 Digitise Street Scene Data 

 Formal Document Classification and Marking 

 Develop a Customer Golden Record 

 Simplify, standardise and share approach to new systems facilitating data sharing, 
interoperability with internal systems, external partners and support for central government 
services, processes and initiatives. 

Outcomes and Benefits - AD/HOS Input on service specific outcomes 

 Overall data quality is improved 

 Know our customers better 

 Target investment and resource more effectively 

 Measure success and learn from failure 

 Share and collaborate with our customers and partners 
 

 

  

Page 44



 Strong Governance, Security and Compliance  

Ensure robust ICT governance, data security and compliance exists to protect the 
confidentiality, integrity and accessibility of our information. 

Rationale 
 As the inevitable growth of data occurs across the Council, effective tools and processes must be 

in place to ensure the data is managed responsibly and in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

 Managing our data and information securely, efficiently, economically and effectively whilst at 
the same time maintaining privacy and protecting customer data in line with the GDPR. 

 The need to continually improve our cyber security defences in line with constantly evolving 
cyber-based threats at all levels alongside a continuous staff awareness programme. 

 A standardised and adopted ICT policy framework ensuring robust ICT governance 

 Achieving on-going compliance obligations strengthens network and information security  
 
Key Activities  

 Work towards achieving Cyber Essentials 

 Review Cyber Security Governance 

 Cyber Security Practitioner training/accreditations 

 Continued PSN Compliance 

 Annual IT Health Check 

 On-going PCI Compliance 

 On-going review of our ICT Governance Framework 

 On-going GDPR compliance 

 Staff awareness programmes for GDRP and Cyber Security 

 Review/refresh endpoint device cyber defence solution 

 Align our information security to National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) best practice  

 Complete and maintain comprehensive Data Audits 

 Implement and promote a Privacy by Design approach  

 
Outcomes and Benefits - expand 

 
 Compliant with legislative requirements  

 Effective network and information security, protecting our systems and data against cyber threat 

 Customer confidence using our digital services and handling their personal data 

 Our evolving technology portfolio and digital transformation is supported by sound ICT 
governance  

 Our workforce are able to use technology in a safe, secure and compliant manner 
 
 

 
 

 

  

Page 45



 Future Fit Technology 

A modern, flexible and effective technology portfolio that supports delivery of the Council’s 
Vision and Strategic Priorities, driving innovation and supporting efficient business operation 
and smarter working whilst maintaining value for money. 

Rational - AD/HOS Input 

 
 Exploiting use of existing technology, sourcing based on best of breed – bespoke solutions only 

where a business justification exists. Harness emerging technologies to provide innovative new 
solutions and ways of working 

 Pragmatic cloud first approach – always where appropriate, practical and financially viable. 
Cloud adoption should be carefully planned, ensure risk is managed and compliance obligations 
met 

 ICT must be well maintained, available, scalable, reliable and resilient.  

 Continually review ICT contracts to ensure they are business and technology fit, value for 
money, meet expectations and are secure and compliant 

 Continually develop skills and competency in our technical staff, ensuring the ICT service is 
appropriately resourced to support and deliver effective and reliable change. 

 Plan and manage a capital programme of investment in ICT effectively 

 Rationalise, standardise and consolidate our technology portfolio to  reduce management 
overhead and increase our ability to adapt to new business requirements and transformation 
programmes 

 Device agnostic applications enabling a fully agile and flexible workforce  
 

Key Activities – AD/HOS Input on service specific activities. 

 On-going, estate wide system review ensuring our ICT contracts are fit for purpose   

 Cloud readiness assessment and subsequent move towards cloud hosted infrastructure and 
applications, leveraging where appropriate use of cloud services. 

 Ensure our data centre environment is fit for purpose for our on premise hosted services 

 Ensure our ICT Disaster Recovery arrangements are robust and fully tested 

 Understand knowledge gaps and individual reliance to develop skills and competency in our 

technical staff using a range of training resources 

 Bring ICT infrastructure, operating systems and productivity tools up to date where required 

and ensure programme of on-going review, refresh and upgrade.  

 Member technology review 

 Work in partnership with procurement to leverage use of frameworks and agile and 

effective ICT procurement processes to better meet demands of rapid technology change.  

 

  

Page 46



Outcomes and Benefits - AD/HOS Input on service specific outcomes 
 

 Utility pricing model of Cloud services - pay as you use 

 Adaptable, flexible, fit for the future technology portfolio 

 Available, reliable and resilient ICT systems 

 Value for money and fit for purpose ICT contracts and 3rd party agreements  

 Up-skilled ICT staff, allowing full use of our internal resources 

 

 

Our Journey to Success 

 

Items for inclusion/consideration - 

 

 Forecasted funding? - This might be difficult longer term. 

 High level key projects? – <key elements from service plans - input from AD’s with timelines> 

 Technology Initiatives/high Level technology road map – key elements from ICT service plan 

(with funding requirements?) 

 Cloud – cloud readiness assessment to start cloud journey. 

 Identity and Access Management 

 Knowledge and Insight Hub Development 

 System Review – longer term objectives  

 Development of ICT to support Covid 19 recovery 

 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan 

 

 

Work Plan 2020 - 2021 

DATE SUBJECT 

March / April 2020 Review of Taxi Licensing Policy – Points 
System – 12 month review 

When clarity on legislation  Fire Safety Update 

Q2 2020/2021 Waste Management developments  

September 2020 ICT Strategy (also working group to be set up:  
SG, RB) 

September 2020 Renewal of PSPO Dog Control 

September 2020  Renewal of PSPO Alcohol Restriction 

January 2021 CCTV implementation review 

25 March 2021 Crime Figures for Tamworth and Community 
safety 

xx 2020 (tbc) Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
interim update 

TBC Castle Update 

TBC Review of taxi evidence 

TBC Public Transport and taxis 

TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety) 

TBC Town Centre Growth 

TBC Events Offer (possible working group) 

TBC Review of West Midlands Combined Authority 
– Green / Climate Strategy – targets and data 
for Tamworth 

TBC Development of Tamworth Community Offer – 
review of draft Strategy 
 

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings 

16th September 2020 

13th October 2020 

24th November 2020 

20th January 2021 

25th March 2021 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Renewal of Tamworth Dog Control and Alcohol Restricted Zone PSPO
	Appendix 1 PSPO Tamworth Dog Control
	Appendix 2 PSPO Alcohol Control in a Public Place
	Appendix 3 Designated area Tamworth Town centre
	Appendix 4 Designated area Amington

	7 ICT Strategy Briefing
	ICT Strategy 2020 - 2025 DRAFT

	10 Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan

